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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Occupying an entire block bordering two park blocks in downtown Portland, the 
Multnomah County Courthouse stands as a model of the prevalent style for governmental 
buildings erected in the early 20th century. The eight-story Neoclassical Revival 
structure is 200 feet square and is of riveted structural steel, fireproofed with concrete 
and faced with terra cotta (the decorative elements and courtyard walls) cementitious 
plaster (the seventh & eighth floors), and regular course granite (the two-story "pedestal 
and limestone (the base, columns,pi Tasters, and entablature). The central courtyard, 64 
by 100 feet, contains a three story annex completed in 1951. The seventh and eighth 
floors, designed for detention purposes, are recessed from the perimeter 8 to 10 feet and 
were originally shielded from public view by a 10 feet high terra cotta-faced parapet 
wall (which has since been removed due to structural weakness). The ribbed metal roof of 
the two attic stories is very slightly hipped to allow drainage.

The east and west facades contained the primary and secondary entrances, respective­ 
ly; however, the formal entrance on the west facade was later filled in to allow more 
courtroom space within, leaving two smaller flanking entrances. Either facade features 
a four-story colonnade of six Ionic columns resting on a two-story "pedestal", alternat­ 
ing with seven bays of triple wooden windows (original, although in poor condition). The 
first two floors—the "pedestal"--contain nine bays of windows except where entrances 
occur in their place. The north and south facades contain three wide bays of windows 
alternating with two narrower bays, each bay separated by a pilaster. Whereas the east 
and west facade windows are divided horizontally into four one-story sections reflecting 
the one-story offices within, the north and south facade windows stretch two stories to 
indicate the high ceilinged courtrooms within. Originally covered with bronze decorative 
screens, the north and south windows have been replaced with glass blocks and aluminum 
frame windows during remodeling of the courtrooms.

Exterior details are rich but subtle, with carved granite and cast terra cotta 
ornament on entrances, entablature, columns, and base. The style of ornament is 
neoclassic Roman, with "egg and dart" horizontal bands, carved lions' heads, rondels, 
and fluted consoles.

The original Courthouse interior was predominately of marble wainscoting, floors, 
and stairs; plaster walls, ceilings, and cornices; oak doors and molding; bronze stair 
railings and posts; and Italian statuary newel posts. Courtrooms were two-story spaces, 
decorated with marble Corinthian columns and tapestry-covered walls. The main staircase 
is open on all six floors; its marble steps and bronze railing make it the focal point 
of the structure.

Over the years the demand for courtrooms has grown, and the building has been 
remodeled on a recurring basis. All but four courtrooms have been changed from a single 
two-story space to two one-story spaces, effectively doubling the number of courtrooms 
but necessitating the removal of all original decorative elements. These modifications, 
plus the remodeling of the majority of the remaining offices throughout the eight floors 
and basement, have left only the hallways, stairs, and two courtrooms in original or 
near-original condition.
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The mechanical system was quite innovative and complex for its time, supplying the 
building with forced air and radiant heating, on-site generated electricity for emergen­ 
cies, and a built-in central vacuuming system with outlets for hose attachments located 
throughout. The original heating system pipe network, in poor condition, is still 
used, although other heating, ventilation, and cooling systems have been added over the 
years.
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.that occurs in tall spaces. Providing forced air from a central source also reduced the 
noise of individual fans and motors and of creaking radiators that could disrupt 
courtroom proceedings.

But while the Courthouse functioned beautifully, it is its elegant appearance that 
gives it its acclaim. In 1914 it stood as Portland's largest building as well as the 
West Coast's largest courthouse. Its style harks back to the monumental architecture of 
Rome while adhering to the modest scale of downtown Portland. The somewhat somber exter­ 
ior serves as a foil to the wealth of detail within. A visitor in 1914 was greeted by 
inlaid marble floors in the portico and lobby; from there he could travel up the formal 
marble staircase to the ornate courtrooms or to the plaster-corniced offices throughout. 
From the bronze grilles covering the courtroom air ducts to the terra cotta lions' heads 
along the cornice, the careful attention to detail makes the Multnomah County Courthouse 
a superior and valuable building, not to be lost.

To be sure, the Courthouse property is intensively used; additional floor space has 
been gained wherever possible, and modern mechanical systems have been introduced. Two 
facades have lost their bronze screens and wooden windows; many plaster ceilings are 
hidden beneath modern suspended acoustical ceilings; most courtrooms have been horizon­ 
tally divided into two more modern, less impressive courtrooms; a three-story annex 
partially fills the courtyard; and general remodeling and modification of office space 
have given the Courthouse interior a variety of styles and elements. The Multnomah 
County Board of Commissioners realizes that modernization is inevitable for most vital 
buildings, but it wishes to focus its efforts in the future on repair, renovation, and 
restoration activities that will return the Courthouse to an appearance substantially 
closer to that which was originally intended. Major structural changes, such as the 
division of courtrooms, the addition of the annex, and some enlargements of offices are 
irreversible; but many other modifications—glass blocks, suspended ceilings, bricked-up 
entrances—are not. Some work has begun, and it is hoped that acceptance on the list 
of the National Register of Historic Places will provide the guidance and, possibly, 
some financial assistance to carry out the work in the best manner possible.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Multnomah County Courthouse (1911-1914) is significant to the city of Portland 
and Multnomah County as an outstanding example of Neo Classical Revival architecture 
by the preeminent Portland architects of the turn of the century, William H. Whidden and 
Ion Lewis. Whidden and Lewis also were responsible for another civic monu ment nearby-- 
the Second Renaissance Revival City Hall of 1895. In the Courthouse project, conven­ 
tional surface detail and progressive notions of function and utility were successfully 
combined in a solid academic design which defines the northwesterly border of a two-block 
park area in the downtown core. Since completion of the initial wing in 1911, the 
Courthouse has served as the seat of government for Multnomah County, which throughout 
the intervening 68 years has been the most urbanized and populous local jurisdiction in 
the state.

During the years 1890-1915, Portland, Oregon experienced a growth rate of phenomenal 
proportions. Economically and culturally Portland was "coming of age". The buildings 
and other structures erected during this time reflected the richer, more discerning 
taste that was prevalent. The premier architects were Whidden and Lewis, two "Easterners' 
who moved to Portland in the 1880s and who, more than any other architects, shaped the 
appearance of downtown Portland.

With flexibility and ingenuity little seen today, construction of the new Courthouse 
was directed so as not to interrupt the proceedings of the old Courthouse sitting on the 
same block. The east wing of the building was completely finished through the eighth 
floor and the employees were moved from the old Courthouse into the new; only then was 
the old structure razed and the remaining three sides of the building begun.

Upon completion, the Courthouse was considered a model of fire safety; the only wood 
used is for furnishings and trim. All parts of the steel frame are covered with concrete 
to prevent damage in case of fire, and plaster ceilings are applied directly to the 
masonry instead of to wooden lath.

Ease of maintainance was also addressed creatively, with the choice of windows that 
pivot about a vertical axis and thus allow cleaning of both sides from within the build­ 
ing. As mentioned in the building description, a built-in vacuuming system (no longer 
in use) allowed cleaning of the entire building by hose attachment outlets located 
throughout.

Mechanically speaking, the Courthouse was quite progressive for its time. Radiant 
heat was supplied to offices, hallways, and lobbies, while forced air heating kept 
two-story courtrooms comfortable by eliminating the stratification of hot and cold air
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